

THE INDIA CATHOLIC ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA, INC
CONSTITUTION AND BYE - LAW



AS AMENDED ON DECEMBER 2ND, 2017

BYE – LAW REVISION
COMMITTEE

MARY PHILIP	BOT Chairperson - 2017 and former president
JOHN PAUL	BOT Co-Chair - 2017 and former president
JOHN K GEORGE	President - 2017
LIJO JOHN	Secretary – 2017
K. J GREGORY	Former President and BOT Chairperson
THOMAS THOMAS	Former President and BOT Chairperson
CYRIAC THOTTAM	Former President and BOT Chairperson
PAUL PANAKAL	Former President and BOT Chairperson
CHERIAN VARGHESE	Former President
JACOB KAINNADY	Former BOT Chairperson



THE INDIA CATHOLIC ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA, INC
CONSTITUTION AND BYE – LAWS
(As amended on December 2nd, 2017)

NAME OF THE CORPORATION:

The corporation shall be designated “ **THE INDIA
CATHOLIC ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA, INC”**

ADDRESS:

The principal place of business of the corporation shall be in the state of New York.

PREAMBLE:

The India Catholic Association of America, Inc. is a realization of the long-cherished desire of the Indian Catholics migration here, in America, to preserve and promote their religious, moral, social, cultural, educational, literary and artistic heritage.

GOALS OF THE CORPORATION:

- a) To act in accordance with the rules and regulations contained in the provisions of section 216 of the education law and section 404 subdivision of the Not-for-profit corporation law.
- b) To transmit their unique heritage to the coming generations.
- c) To provide encouragement, support and incentive for



the continued practices of the catholic family life in India characterized by traditional liturgical service and family prayer life.

- d) To establish a forum for youth to maintain and invigorate the cultural heritage handed down by their forefathers.
- e) To provide lay leadership that is vital to the spiritual and temporal growth of the community as envisaged by the second Vatican council.
- f) To affiliate with any other corporations having the same or similar goals.
- g) To do all such acts and things as may be consistent with or incidental and conducive to the attainment of any or all of the above objectives.
- h) To make any modification, amendment, deletion or addition to the rules for the smooth and successful running of the corporation.
- i) The corporation is not intended for making any profit and as such the income of the corporation shall be utilized solely for the advancement of the objectives of the corporation herein described for any of them.

-

SECTION I

DEFINITIONS:

- 1.1 **Corporation:**
Means the India Catholic Association of America, Inc.



- 1.2 Member:**
Means a member of the corporation.
- 1.3 General Meeting:**
Means a General Meeting of the corporation.
- 1.4 General Body:**
Means all the members of the corporation except associate members.
- 1.5 Board of Trustee:**
Means the committee of persons organized under authority of law in order to exercise certain authorities, have oversight or control of certain matters or discharge central functions of a magisterial representative or fiduciary character.
- 1.5 Executive Committee:**
Means the body of persons elected by the General Body for carrying on the day - to-day administration of the corporation.
- 1.6 Regular Members:**
Are those members who are 18 years of age and older and who enroll themselves as members by paying a membership fee of \$25.00 Per Person per year.
- 1.7 Life Members:**
Are those enroll themselves as members by paying a membership fee of \$50.00 Per Person or \$100.00 for family.
- 1.8 Associate Members:**
All those who are below the age of 18 are eligible to become Associate Members.



- 1.9 Honorary Members:**
Are those who have rendered exceptional and meritorious services to the corporation. Such members shall not be liable to pay any membership fee.
- 1.10 Spiritual Council:**
All Indian Catholic priests in America are eligible to be members of the spiritual council.
- 1.11 Traditional Indian Liturgy:**
Means Syro Malabar, Syro Malankara, Latin and Knanaya Liturgy
- 1.12 Chairperson:**
Means Chairperson of the Board of Trustees.
- 1.13 President:**
Means the president of the corporation for a specified term.
- 1.14 Vice President:**
Means the Vice president of the Corporation.
- 1.15 Secretary:**
Means the Secretary of the corporation and includes any person acting as such or appointed to perform the duties of the Secretary temporarily.
- 1.16 Treasurer:**
Means the Chief financial officer of the corporation, who shall be in charge of the corporation's books and accounts.
- 1.17 Joint Secretary:**
Joint secretary of the corporation.



SECTION 2

MEMBERSHIP:

2.1 Admission to Membership:

- a) Only people of Indian origin, who are members of the Catholic Church and their spouses shall be eligible for membership in the association.
- b) All those who are eligible for membership shall apply in the prescribed form to the Executive Committee from January 1st to December 31st, together with the admission fee in effect. Regular membership shall be renewed every year starting from January 1st.
- c) Such application for membership shall be disposed of by the Executive Committee at its next meeting and the result shall be communicated to the applicants by the Secretary within a month after the meeting.
- d) The applications denied by the Executive Committee shall be submitted to the next General Body Meeting for review and final decision.
- e) The applicants may also present their case to the immediate General Body Meeting for consideration.
- f) If an application is rejected, the amount, if any, paid by the applicant will be refunded.

2.2 Rights and Duties of Members:

- a) Regular Members: The regular have the right to



attend, participate, discuss and vote in the general body meetings, hold any office except as a member of the Executive Committee, the Board of Trustees and the Committee for India Catholic Association and Participate in other functions of the corporation.

- b) Associate Members: Associate Members are entitled to participate and discuss in the meetings of the General Body and other functions of the corporation. They have no voting rights and shall not hold any elective office in the corporation.
- c) Honorary Members: Any regular member may introduce prospective Honorary Members. A Honorary member shall enjoy all the privileges of a regular member except the right to vote and hold an elective office in the corporation.
- e) Life Members: A life member shall have all the rights and duties of a regular member and shall hold any office. The Life membership fee collected shall be deposited in a fixed bank account. The interest earned from this amount may be used for the day-to-day expenses of the association and the capital may be used for any special purpose with the consent of two third majorities of the Life Members and the Majority of the general body.

2.3 Register of Members:

A register of members shall be maintained in which shall set forth:



- a) The name and address.
- b) The date on which each member was entered in the register and;
- c) The date on which each member ceased to be a member.

2.4 Cessation of Membership:

- a) Membership shall cease by death, resignation, expulsion or dissolution of the corporation.
- b) Any member who intends to discontinue his/her membership temporarily or resign from the corporation shall communicate his/her intention in writing to the secretary.
- c) Defaulters shall not be eligible to participate in any meetings of the corporation until they clear up all arrears up to date.

SECTION 3

MANAGEMENT:

- 3.1 The management of the corporation shall be vested in the Executive Committee which shall have full power to carry on and execute the goals of the corporation and to raise and expend money thereon subject to the limits imposed by the General Body.
- 3.2 The Executive committee shall consist of 7 members elected by the General Body and 10 members



elected by zonal committees. All members of the Executive committee shall retire at the end of each calendar year. The retiring members however shall continue in office if re-elected by the General Body or by the zonal committees.

SECTION 4

OFFICE BEARERS:

4.1 Executive Committee:

- a) The Executive committee shall consist of the president, Vice president, Secretary, Joint Secretary, Treasurer, 2 members elected directly by the General Body and 10 members elected by zonal committees.
- b) Any person elected to the Executive committee shall be a life member of the association.
- c) A person elected to the position of President Vice President, Secretary, Joint Secretary or Treasurer of the India Catholic Association of America shall not hold the position of President, Vice President, Secretary, Joint Secretary or Treasurer in any other organization during the term of his/her office in the India Catholic Association of America.

4.2 The President:

The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of



the corporation. He / She shall preside over the meetings of the Executive Committee. He/ She shall be responsible for the supervision and control of the activities of the corporation. He/ She shall direct the secretary to call the meetings of the corporation.

4.3 The Vice President:

The Vice President shall help the President in the discharge of his/her duties and during the absence of the President shall perform his/her duties.

4.4 The Secretary:

The Secretary is the recording and corresponding officer of the corporation. He / She shall conduct himself/ herself under the guidance of the President. He / She shall maintain and update the Membership Register, the Constitution and By-Law instead of by-law and other documents of the corporation. He / She shall keep the minutes of all meetings. He / She shall convene the meetings of the corporation from time to time as decided by the Executive Committee.

4.5 The Joint Secretary:

The Joint Secretary shall assist the secretary in the performance of his / her duties. In the absence of the Secretary, the Joint Secretary shall carry on his/ her



duties.

4.6 The Treasurer:

The treasurer shall collect dues and contributions and issue receipts for the same. He/ She shall disburse funds on behalf of the corporation when authorized by the president and the Secretary. Cash in excess of \$200.00 shall be deposited in a bank selected by the treasurer and approved by the Executive Committee. The bank account shall be jointly operated by the Treasurer the President and the Secretary. The consent of the majority of the Executive Committee shall be necessary to make any cash withdrawal of more than \$500.00. The approval of at least two third majority of the Executive Committee shall be necessary to make any cash withdrawal exceeding \$2,000.00. The financial status of the corporation shall be available for inspection by the Executive Committee. The Board of Trustees or the Auditors with at least one week's notice. The Treasurer shall present a financial statement at the Annual and Semi-Annual General Body Meetings of the corporation.

SECTION 5

RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE:



- 5.1 Any Life Member shall be elected even in his/her absence to the Executive Committee except to the rank of office bearers namely the President, Vice President, Joint Secretary and Treasurer, provided he/ she has given his/ her consent in writing.
- 5.2 The Executive Committee shall have the power to set up such sub-committees as liturgical, sports and cultural for the realization of all the goals of the corporation when necessary. The conveners of these committees shall have the right to participate in the meetings of the Executive Committee.
- 5.3 The Executive Committee shall be the governing body of the corporation. It shall make decisions and act on behalf of the corporation in the absence of any directive from the General Body or the Board of Trustees.
- 5.4 The Executive Committee shall take action on membership applications within 60 days of receiving them.
- 5.5 In the event that the office of the President or the Secretary becomes vacant, the Vice President and the Joint Secretary shall respectively assume their offices.
- 5.6 The Executive Committee shall have the power to fill casual vacancies in the Committee except for the office bearers. In the event that the post of the Treasurer becomes vacant, the President shall take over until the next General Body Meeting.
- 5.7 The Executive Committee shall have the authority to



take disciplinary action on members whose actions are detrimental to the interests of the corporation. Such actions shall be presented to the next General Body Meeting for its approval before it takes effect.

- 5.8 The Executive Committee shall have the right to fix the rates of admission to performances conducted or sponsored by the corporation and to decide questions of free admission to such performances.
- 5.9 To place before the General Body Meeting, a report of the working committee of the Corporation during the year together with an audited and certified balance sheet for the General Body's consideration shall be the duty of the Executive Committee.
- 5.10 The Executive Committee shall have the right and responsibility to arrange Holy Masses and other liturgical services and to organize and conduct entertainments, concerts, lectures, competition and demonstrations consistent with the objectives of the corporations and to do all acts which would implement the goals of the corporation.
- 5.11 The Executive Committee shall suggest amendments, alterations or cancellation of any of the rules and regulations for the corporation and also frame new rules and regulations for consideration by the General Body.
- 5.12 The Executive Committee shall have the right to perform all other acts connected with the administration of the corporation and for the transaction of its business, protection and safety of



its properties.

- 5.13 If the Treasurer is unable to participate in the Executive Committee meeting, the financial statements of the corporation, for the period, shall be made available at the meeting.

SECTION 6

TERM OF OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE:

- 6.1 The Executive Committee shall be elected for a term of one year, from January 1st to December 31st, in the elections conducted at the Annual General Body Meeting and the elections conducted in the different zones during the preceding year. No individual shall be elected to the office of the president for more than two consecutive terms.

SECTION 7

RESIGNATION AND REMOVAL OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE:

- 7.1 Any member of Executive Committee may resign at any time. Any member of the Executive Committee may be removed at any time with justifiable cause by a two third majority vote of the entire Executive Committee.
- 7.2 Any or all member of the Executive Committee may



be removed by a majority vote of the General Body.

- 7.3 Any official appointed by the Executive Committee or any other committee may be removed by the appointing body at any time.

SECTION 8

BOARD OF TRUSTEES:

8.1 A Board of Trustees consisting of five members elected by the General Body and four members nominated by these five-elected members shall be established. The name of the nominated members shall be presented to the Executive Committee for ratification.

8.2 a) The term of office of the members of The Board of Trustees shall be five years. The outgoing members shall be eligible for re-election or re-nomination for a consecutive term.

b) One elected member of The Board of Trustees shall retire at the end of each year and a new member shall be elected to fill the vacancy.

8.3 A chairperson shall be elected by The Board of Trustees for a period of one year. The Chairperson shall be eligible for re-election for a consecutive term.

8.4 Eligibility to be elected or nominated as a member of the Board of Trustees:

a) Any life member who has reached his / her 35th



birthday, and has served as President, Secretary or Treasurer (Preferably President) of the India Catholic Association of America, Inc. shall be eligible to be elected or nominated to the Board of Trustees.

- b) The person seeking the office shall not have any record of conviction by the court of law except for minor traffic violations.
- c) The Board of Trustees shall not hold any position in any other committee of the India Catholic Association of America, Inc. responsible for financial decisions.
- d) Members of the Board of Trustees are liable individually and collectively for the misappropriations of the funds of The India Catholic Association of America, Inc.
- e) The Board of Trustees shall have enough collateral / credit standing to become a member of the Board of Trustees.
- f) The Board of Trustees shall have to be ready, willing and able to co-sign for any future/ likely financial commitments on behalf of the Association.

8.5 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

- a) The Board of Trustees shall be responsible for preserving and protecting the constitution of the India Catholic Association of America, Inc. and its assets.
- b) Accounts for the Life Membership Fund or funds for any future India Catholic Association Center shall be



in the custody of the Board of Trustees. These accounts shall bear the signatures of the chairperson of the Board of Trustees, a second member of the Board of Trustees chosen by the Board of Trustees and the President of The India Catholic Association of America, Inc.

- c) The Board of Trustees shall make decisions to invest these funds in high yielding non-risk investment portfolios.
- d) The Executive Committee may maintain the regular operating account. At the end of the year, amount in excess of \$2,000.00. Shall be transferred to the Proposed India Catholic Centre Fund. At the discretion of the Board of Trustees, the amount shall be transferred before year end if the operating account has an unusually large surplus amount.
- e) The Chairperson of the Board of Trustees shall preside over the transfer of books and records to a new Executive Committee at the beginning of the term of the new Committee.
- f) The Chairperson of the Board of Trustees shall initiate investigations upon receipt of written complaints by members of the General Body and will recommend appropriate actions to the Executive Committee.
- g) The Board of Trustees shall meet once every three months or whenever such a meeting is required and will review financial matters or matters related to policy decisions. The president Secretary and



Treasurer of the Executive Committee shall be invited to all such meetings, but will not have voting rights.

- h) If necessary, the Board of Trustees shall have the authority to appoint an independent certified public accountant and/ or legal counsel for conducting an impartial investigation.
- i) The Chairperson of the Board of Trustees shall be the retiring officer at the annual election. He / She shall supervise the election and ensure a free and independent election. He/ She shall also investigate complaints received with respect to the qualifications of any candidate running for office and shall recommend appropriate actions to the Executive Committee.

8.6 VACANCY AND REMOVAL OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEE

- a) A member of the Board of Trustees can be removed by the General Body by a majority vote in a General Body meeting.
- b) If an elected member of the Board of Trustees retires during the year, such a vacancy shall be filled by an election in the next Annual General Body Meeting. If a nominated member retires during the year, such a vacancy shall be filled by nomination immediately.



SECTION 9

ZONAL UNITS OF THE INDIA CATHOLIC ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA.

- 9.1 The India Catholic Association of America shall establish zonal units in the Tri-states area to insure better participation from all areas.
- 9.2 The following zonal unites comprising of areas mention in each grouping shall be established.
- A) New Jersey
 - B) Rockland
 - C) Manhattan, Bronx, Westchester and Connecticut
 - D) Brooklyn, Queens and Staten Island
 - E) Long Island
- 9.3 A zonal committee shall consist of a Director, a Deputy Director, three members elected by the members of a zone and four members selected by the five elected members.
- 9.4 The Director and the Deputy Director from each zone will be members of the Executive Committee.
- 9.5 If a Director and a Deputy Director are not elected for any zone by the time the Annual General Body convenes, the vacancies in the Executive Committee shall be filled by members from any area elected by the General body.



9.6 ELECTIONS FOR ZONAL COMMITTEES

- a) Elections for zonal committee shall be conducted at least one week before the Annual General Body meeting.
- b) A notice of election will be sent to all the members in each zone at least two weeks prior to the day of the elections by the Secretary of the India Catholic Association of America, Inc.
- c) The Executive Committee shall appoint a presiding officer or presiding officers to conduct elections in all zonal units. The results of the elections shall be submitted to the Secretary of India Catholic Association of America Inc. with the signatures of two witnesses.

9.7 If a Director or a Deputy Director from any zone is elected as the President, Vice- President, Secretary, Joint secretary or Treasurer he/ she shall relinquish his/ her position in the zonal Committee and the vacancy shall be filled by an election in the zone.

9.8 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

- a) The zonal committee shall arrange masses or conduct other activities to promote the goals of the India Catholic Association of America in their



respective areas.

- b) All activities shall be scheduled on days for which the Executive Committee of the India Catholic Association of America has not scheduled any activities for the association.
- c) The zonal committees shall present a schedule of their activities to the Executive Committee in advance for their approval and shall brief the Executive Committee on past activities in each meeting.
- d) Collections in masses and expenses for all activities and functions of the zonal committees shall be the responsibility of the zonal committee.
- e) The Director or his/ her designee shall be responsible for all funds collected and a statement detailing all financial activities for each quarter shall be submitted to the Treasurer of the India Catholic Association of America, Inc.
- f) Any amount left over after a function shall be handed over to the Treasurer of the India Catholic Association of America, Inc within 30 days after the function. Separate accounts of funds received from each zone shall be maintained by the Treasurer. The Director or his/ her designee shall request and receive these funds from the Treasurer at any time.
- g) Membership dues for the India Catholic Association of America, Inc collected by zonal committee shall be handed over to the Treasurer and shall be utilized by the association.



SECTION 10

10.1 GENERAL BODY MEETING:

- a) There shall be an annual meeting of the General Body in the month of November of every year wherein elections shall be conducted. At least a thirty-day notice shall be given for either by US mail or Electronic mail for this meeting.
- b) There shall be a semi-annual meeting of the General Body during the second quarter of the term of the Executive committee, with at least a fifteen-day notice.
- c) Special meetings of the members may be called either by resolution of the Executive Committee or by twenty five percent (25%) of the members, who may in writing demand the call of the special meeting, stating the date and month of the meeting, which shall be not less than two or more than three months from the date thereof. If the Secretary does not give notice of the meetings within five business days of receipt of the demand, any member having signed the demand may sign the notice. Only business related to the purpose or purposes set forth in the notice of the meeting may be transacted at a special meeting.
- d) Every notice of meeting shall specify the place and



the day and hour of the meeting and shall contain a statement of the business to be transacted.

- e) Notice of every meeting of the corporation shall be given to every member of the corporation.
- f) The accidental omission to give notice or the non-receipt of the notice by any member or other person, to whom it should be given, shall not invalidate the proceedings of the meetings.
- g) No remuneration or allowance of any kind be paid to any member for attending any meeting of the corporation.

10.2 QUORUM:

- a) The quorum of the General Body Meeting shall be one hundred members. In the absence of a quorum, the president or any other officer entitled to preside at the meeting may, with the consent of those present, adjourn the meeting for 30 minutes, In the reconvened meeting, the majority of those present shall take decision.
- b) A majority of the entire Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum for the Executive Committee meeting. In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the committee members present may adjourn the meeting for 30 minutes, in the reconvened meeting, the majority of those present shall take decision.

10.3 MEETING OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE:



The Executive Committee shall meet at least once in every two months. A seven-day notice, at least, shall be given for such meetings. A majority of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum. Board of trustee chairperson must be invited to this meeting.

10.4 SPECIAL MEETING:

Special meetings of the Executive Committee may be called by the president or by any two of the members of the Executive Committee. Notice of a special meeting need not state the purpose for which the meeting need not be given, other than by announcement at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken.

SECTION 11

VOTE OF MEMBERS:

- 11.1a) Eligibility to vote in the semi-annual general body meeting shall be restricted to members who applied for a new membership or renewal on or before the 15th of May and whose membership applications have been approved by the Executive Committee.
- b) Eligibility to vote in the annual general body meeting shall be restricted to members who applied for a new



membership or renewal on or before the 30th of September and whose membership applications have been approved by the Executive Committee.

- c) Eligibility to vote in special meetings shall be restricted to members whose applications for a new membership or renewal have been approved by Executive Committee as of the day of the resolution of the Executive Committee or the day the call of the special meeting was demanded by members.
- d) At any meeting of the corporation, every eligible member present shall be entitled to one vote and in the event of a tie, the president shall have the casting vote.

11.2 No person other than a member shall be entitled to vote at the meeting of the corporation and no member shall nominate any other person to vote.

11.3a) Voting for the election of the Executive Committee shall be by secret ballot.

b) Voting for all other issues may be by show of hands or by secret ballot; if so desired by the general body.

11.4 A copy of the register of membership certified by the auditors shall be kept at the entrance of the meeting hall.

11.5 The General Body may elect two auditors to audit the accounts of the corporation.

11.6 **NOMINATIONS FOR ELECTIONS:**



- a) Any Life Member who wishes to be elected to the Executive Committee or the Board of Trustees shall submit a nomination paper to the Secretary 15 days before the election date. Secretary shall hand over such names to the Board of Trustee chairperson 10 days before the election date and all such names shall be published in the notice of the Annual General Body Meeting.
- b) If the candidates for the Executive Committee so desire, their names shall be presented in the form of a panel on the ballot paper. A written request with the names of the candidates shall be submitted to this effect along with nominations.
- c) If more than one panel exists, each panel shall be printed in separate columns on the ballot paper. The order; from left to right shall be in alphabetical order of the last names of the presidential candidate.
- d) A member who wishes to be elected to a zonal committee shall submit a nomination paper to the secretary on or 15 days before the election date. Secretary shall hand over such names to the Board of Trustee chairperson 10 days before the election date and all such names shall be published in the notice of election sent to member in each zone.

SECTION 12

DOCUMENTATION, ACCOUNTS AND FINANCES:



- 12.1 Minutes of the proceedings of the meetings of the corporation and of the Executive Committee shall be maintained and shall be signed by the person presiding over the next meeting.
- 12.2 At all Annual General Body Meetings, the Executive Committee shall lay before the members a balance sheet and income and expenditure statement made up to date.
- 12.3 The auditor's report shall be attached to the balance sheet and income and expenditure statement or there shall be inserted at the foot thereof a reference to the report and the report shall be read before the members in General Body Meetings and shall be open to inspection by any member.
- 12.4 Every account of the corporation which was audited and approved by the General Body Meeting shall be conclusive except for any error discovered therein within one month after approval thereof.
- 12.5 All the funds of the association shall be deposited in high yielding investments of no risk.
- 12.6 At the end of each year, any amount in the checking account or savings account in excess of \$2,000.00 shall be transferred to the proposed future India Catholic Association fund.
- 12.7 No funds can be withdrawn from the Fund for India Catholic Association Life Members Fund, or any special savings account without the explicit approval of the majority of the General Body. Interest from Life



Membership Fund can be withdrawn without the above-mentioned approvals.

- 12.8 A special savings account shall be opened for charitable contributions received from member exclusively for charitable causes. Disbursements of these funds can be done only with the approval of the Executive Committee. The Treasurer shall notify the Chairperson of the Board of Trustees of such disbursements in advance.

SECTION 13

MISCELLANEOUS:

13.1 AMENDMENTS:

Any amendments or alterations to thi constitution shall be made only during the semi-annual meeting or annual meeting of the General Body. The proposed amendments shall be circulated at least 30 days before the meeting. At least a majority of two thirds of the total votes polled of those present in person shall be required to ratify any alteration or amendment.

13.2 SEAL:

The Executive Committee shall adopt a corporate seal which shall bear the corporation's name and the



year and state in which it was incorporated.

13.3 FISCAL YEAR:

The Executive Committee may determine the corporation's fiscal year.

13.4 DISSOLUTION:

The corporation can be dissolved if so decided by the General Body specially convened to discuss the question and by a resolution passed with two thirds of the votes of the total numbers of members then existing. In the event of dissolution, the assets of the corporation shall be passed over to the Department of catholic charities of the Archdiocese of New York.

ZONAL COMMITTEE, 2017

New Jersey

Lagen Jose
Paul Chacko

Rockland

Innocent Ulahannan
Roy Anthony

Manhattan, Bronx, Westchester and Connecticut

George Joseph
Mathew Joseph

Brooklyn, Queens and Staten Island

Jolly Jacob
Paul Panackal

Long Island

George Kutty
Paul Jerry koilparampil

BOARD OF TRUSTEES, 2017

Chairperson

Mary Philip

Co- chair

John Paul

Members

Cheriyen Chakkalapadickal

Ginsmon P Zacharia

Jobkutty Thomas Manalel

Jose Kalapurakal

Jose Kanattu

Thomas Thomas

Vincent Vareed

EXCUTIVE COMMITTEE, 2017

PRESIDENT



JOHN K GEORGE

VICE PRESIDENT



JOFRIN JOSE

SECRETARY



LIJO JOHN

JOINT SECRETARY



PAUL JOSE

TREASURER



SABU MARKOSE

COMMITTEE MEMBER'S



JOSE MALAYAL



SHIJU KALATHIL



ANTOO VARKEY



SURESH THOMAS



This book donated by: John Paul (BOT Co-Chair)